
  
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
  
2. MINUTES

 2.a. Consideration of the minutes of the May 17, 2023 Plan Commission meeting
 Attachment
  
3. REPORTS

 3.a. Consideration of a request from Wisconsin Power and Light for a ten-foot Natural Gas Line
and Underground Communication Line Facilities Easement through City-owned property
located at 1611 Hackett Street

 Attachment

 3.b. Consideration of Resolution No. 2023-027 approving a one-lot Extraterritorial Certified
Survey Map for the property located at 4611 E Ryan Parkway in the Town of Turtle

 Attachment

 3.c. Consideration of an amendment to the Future Land Use Map of the Comprehensive Plan
for the property located at 1006 Park Avenue

 Attachment
  
4. PUBLIC HEARINGS

 4.a. Consideration of Ordinance No. 3794 amending the Zoning District Map of the City of
Beloit for the property located at 1006 Park Avenue
Staff Report is included with Item 3c

 4.b. Consideration of Resolution 2023-024 authorizing a Conditional Use Permit for the property
located at 555 Willowbrook Road

 Attachment

 4.c. Consideration of Ordinance No. 3793 amending the Zoning District Map of the City of
Beloit for the property located at 2000 Gateway Boulevard

 Attachment
  
5. STATUS REPORT ON PRIOR PLAN COMMISSION ITEMS

Comprehensive Plan Steering Committee
Zoning Map Amendment - 2030 Porter Avenue

PUBLIC NOTICE & AGENDA
BELOIT PLAN COMMISSION

City Hall Forum - 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511
7:00 PM 

Wednesday, June 7, 2023

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Plan Commission
Meeting Agenda - June 7, 2023

1

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1986861/05-17-2023_Plan_Commission_minutes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1985248/PC_Staff_Report_-_RPB-2023-03__Natural_Gas_Easement__1611_Hackett_Street.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1986672/PC_Report_-_CSM-2023-11__4611_E._Ryan_Parkway____TOT_.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1985256/PC_Report_-_ZMA-2023-05__1006_Park.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1997560/Staff_Report__CU-2023-06__555_Willowbrook_Rd__Silo_height_M-2.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1985304/PC_Report_-_ZMA-2023-04__2000_Gateway.pdf


Annexation - 5000 Block of County Road X
  
6. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

Zoning Map Amendment – 2231 Trevino Court 
Conditional Use Permit - 1431 Manchester St 
Certified Survey Map - 1957 McKinley (Town of Beloit)
Certified Survey Map - 1947 Paddock (Town of Beloit)
Sign Ordinance Exception - 2757 Prairie Avenue
Conditional Use Permit - Ironworks

  
7. ADJOURNMENT

** Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs
of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information to request this service, please
contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511.

 

 Plan Commission
Meeting Agenda - June 7, 2023

2



 

1 | P a g e  
 

MINUTES 
PLAN COMMISSION 

City Hall Forum - 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511 
7:00 PM 

Wednesday, May 17, 2023 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
Chairperson Ramsden called the meeting to order at 7:02 PM. Commissioners Ramsden, 
Janke, Anderson, Abarca, Jacobsen, Elliott, and Councilor Day were present. Commissioner 
Flesch was absent. 
 

2. ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
2.a. Election of Chairperson 

Commissioner Anderson nominated Commissioner Ramsden, seconded by 
Commissioner Jacobsen. Motion approved, voice vote (6-0). 
 

2.b. Election of Vice-Chairperson 
Commissioner Jacobsen nominated Commissioner Anderson, seconded by 
Commissioner Janke. Motion approved, voice vote (6-0). 
 

3. MINUTES 
3.a. Consideration of the minutes of May 3, 2023 Plan Commission meeting 

Commissioner Janke moved to approve the Minutes, seconded by Commissioner 
Jacobsen. Motion prevailed, voice vote (6-0).  

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
No public hearings have been scheduled for this meeting. 
 

5. REPORTS 
5.a. Consideration of Resolution 2023-018 authorizing an extension to the Conditional 

Use Permit (CUP) for the Drive-In Restaurant on property located at 2757 Prairie 
Avenue 
Julie Christensen, Community Development Director, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Commissioner Jacobsen asked what would happen if the CUP would lapse again. Ms. 
Christensen said that Plan Commission can extend their CUP out another 12 months.  
 
Vicki Schleisner, owner of Scooters Coffee, explained that Alliant could take up to 26 
weeks to bring out the transformer. Ms. Schleisner said that Alliant did not give her a 
date that they would come out, and she is asking Plan Commission to extend the CUP 
for a full year. 
 

3



 

2 | P a g e  
 

Commissioner Anderson moved to amend the resolution to extend the timeframe for 
the Conditional Use Permit to June 6, 2024, seconded by Commissioner Jacobsen. 
Motion approved, voice vote (6-0). 

 
5.b. Consideration of Resolution 2023-22 approving a three-lot Certified Survey Map for 

the property located at 400 Willowbrook Road 
Julie Christensen, Community Development Director, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Commissioner Anderson asked if the applicant decides to build, does Plan Commission 
have the ability to approve the types of businesses that will go into the buildings. Ms. 
Christensen said that there was a rezoning of the property to C3, Community 
Commercial uses, and as long as those businesses comply with C-3 zoning, there is no 
additional approvals required.  However, if he adds more than one building, it will 
come back to Plan Commission for approval of a Planned Unit Development.  
 
Joe Stadelman, Angus Young Associates, said that he would occupy the middle building 
first, and leave the rest open for future planning. Mr. Stadelman said that the south 
side is proposed to have a drive-through use, and this will come back to Plan 
Commission. However, Mr. Stadelman said the applicant does not need a drive-thru 
for his business.   
 
Commissioner Janke moved to approve the resolution, seconded by Commissioner 
Anderson. Motion approved, roll call vote (6-0).  

 
5.c. Consideration of the vacation of a portion of the right-of-way adjacent to 400 

Willowbrook Road  
Julie Christensen, Community Development Director, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Commissioner Jacobsen moved to approve the resolution, seconded by Commissioner 
Anderson. Motion approved, roll call vote (6-0).  
 

5.d. Consideration of Resolution 2023-21 approving an Extraterritorial One-lot Certified 
Survey Map for the property located at 2335 W Forest Avenue in the Town of Beloit 
Julie Christensen, Community Development Director, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 
 
Commissioner Janke moved to approve the resolution, seconded by Commissioner 
Jacobsen. Motion approved, roll call vote (6-0).  

 

4



 

3 | P a g e  
 

5.e. Consideration of a request to annex the property located at 5037 E County Rd X and 
the vacant land to the west from the Town of Turtle 
Julie Christensen, Community Development Director, presented the staff report and 
recommendation. 

 
Chairperson Ramsden asked if this is approved, when would the Temporary Zoning be 
approved. Ms. Christensen said when staff looked at the state law, the City does not 
have to assign temporary zoning.  Ms. Christensen said as soon as the annexation gets 
approved by City Council, the Comprehensive Plan amendment and a permanent 
zoning will be processed. Chairperson Ramsden asked if the Comprehensive Plan 
amendment will come to Plan Commission. Ms. Christensen said that Plan Commission 
will act on both the Comprehensive Plan amendment and the rezoning of the property 
at the same meeting.  
 
Commissioner Anderson asked if the adjacent residents weren’t notified because it is 
an annexation and not a rezoning.  Ms. Christensen said under Annexation law, the 
City is required to notify the Town Clerk and State Department of Administration, and 
when the zoning comes forward the neighbors will be notified.  
 
Chairperson Ramsden asked if the Town Clerk does anything with the notification. Ms. 
Christensen said she does not know.  
 
Bradley Trewyn, the property owner, who is also a member of the Planning and Zoning 
Committee for Town of Turtle said that residents within 1,000 feet will be notified.  Mr. 
Trewyn said that he has owned the property for 30 years, and they were waiting until 
the boundary line agreement expired to be annexed because it was allowed under the 
agreement.  
 
Commissioner Jacobsen asked if we would process Comprehensive Plan Amendments 
while the Comprehensive Plan is getting updated.  Ms. Christensen said the new plan 
will not be done until a year from now, and any requests that come up before that is 
updated  will be processed and then ultimately included in the new Comprehensive 
Plan.  
 
Commissioner Jacobsen moved to approve the annexation, seconded by 
Commissioner Janke. Motion approved, roll call vote (6-0).  
 

6. STATUS REPORT ON PRIOR PLAN COMMISSION ITEMS 
Ms. Christensen updated the Plan Commission on the actions taken by City Council related 
to a variety of items previously reviewed by Plan Commission. Ms. Christensen said the next 
Plan Commission meeting is scheduled for June 7, 2023. 
 

7. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
Julie Christensen outlined the future agenda items. 

5



 

4 | P a g e  
 

 
8. ADJOURNMENT 

Commissioner Anderson moved to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Commissioner 
Jacobsen at 7:34 PM.   Motion carried, voice vote (6-0). 
 
 
 

  
Mike Ramsden, Chairperson 

6



REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 

Plan Commission Meeting Date:  June 7, 2023 

Agenda Item:  3.a. 

File Number:  RPB-2023-02 

General Information 

Applicant:  Wisconsin Power & Light Co. DBA Alliant Energy 

Owner:  City of Beloit 

Address/Location:  1611 Hackett Street 

Applicant’s Request: Wisconsin Power & Light Company has requested a 10-foot Natural Gas 
Line and Underground Communication Line Facilities Easement through City-owned property 
located at 1611 Hackett Street (Krueger Park) as described and illustrated on the attachments.   

Staff Analysis 

Existing Conditions:  The purpose of the easement is to allow the applicant to replace an 
underground natural gas line and add underground communication line facilities. The subject 
property (Krueger Park) is 134 total acres, and the proposed easement would be along the west 
property line of Krueger Park parallel to Moore Street.  Specifically, it would be located in the 
greenspace between the existing parking lot and the Moore Street right-of-way line north of 
House Street to the north line of Krueger Park (the south line of the former Boys and Girls Club 
facility owned by 360 Degrees, LLC).  Note the utility lines are anticipated to continue north to 
Burton, but this easement request is only through the City-owned property. Alliant is working 
to obtain a separate easement from 360 Degrees, LLC. 

Surrounding Land Use and Zoning:  There are residential land uses surrounding the subject 
property, along with the former Boys and Girls Club, now a community center. The land to the 
west and south is zoned R-1B, Single Family Residential with some R-2, Two-Family Residential 
along Hackett Street.  To the north is PLI, Public Lands and Institutions and Planned Unit 
Development (PUD) zoned lands.  To the east opposite the golf course is a mix of land uses 
including R-3, Low Density Multifamily Residential, M-1, Limited Manufacturing, R-1A, Single 
Family Residential and additional R-1B and PLI zoned lands. The proposed easement does not 
affect zoning. 

7



City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:  The Future Land Use Map recommends 
Parks and Open Space uses, which is the current land use.  The proposed easement does not 
affect future land use.  This request supports Strategic Goal #5 by creating and sustaining high 
quality infrastructure and connectivity. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
The Planning and Building Services Division recommends approval of the 10-foot Natural Gas 
Easement through City-owned property located at 1611 Hackett Street. 

ATTACHMENTS:  Location Map, Alliant Energy Site Map, Proposed Easement and Easement 
Exhibits. 

8



Location Map 

9



Alliant Energy Site Map 

10



Proposed Easement and Easement Exhibits 

11



12



13



14



  

 

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 
Plan Commission Meeting Date:  June 7, 2023 

Agenda Item:  3.b. 

File Number:  CSM-2023-11 

General Information 

Applicant:  Kristy N O Dygart 
Owner:  Kristy N O Dygart 
Address:  4611 E Ryan Parkway  
Jurisdiction: Town of Turtle 
Applicant’s Request: One-lot Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map (CSM) 
 
Staff Analysis 

Proposed Land Division: The intent of the proposed extraterritorial CSM is to combine lots 11 
and 12 of Turtle Rock Estates, The proposed Lot 1 consists of 2.83 acres.  
 
Surrounding Land Use and Zoning:  The property is subject to Town zoning and is zoned RR, 
Rural Residential. The subject property is surrounded by RR, Rural Residential zoning in the 
Town of Turtle with residential uses to the north, east, and south. To the west of the subject 
property is R-1A, Single-Family Residential and DH, Development Holding zoning with 
residential and agricultural uses in the City of Beloit.    
 
City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:  The Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land 
Use Map recommends Single-Family Residential uses for the subject property. However, land 
use cannot be considered when reviewing Extraterritorial CSM applications according to state 
law. 
 
Review Agent Comments:  No comments were submitted. 
  
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
The Planning and Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached one-lot 
Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map (CSM) for 4611 E. Ryan Parkway in the Town of Turtle, 
subject to the following condition: 
 

1. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds within one year 
of approval and a copy provided to the Planning and Building Services Division. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  Location Map, Certified Survey Map, Application, and Resolution. 
 

15



  

LOCATION MAP

 

16



  

17



  

 

18



  

 
RESOLUTION 2023-027 

 
APPROVING A ONE-LOT EXTRATERRITORIAL CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP 

FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 4611 E. RYAN PARKWAY IN THE TOWN OF TURTLE 
 

WHEREAS, Section 12.05(1)b of Chapter 12 of the Code of General Ordinances of the 
City of Beloit entitled “Subdivision and Official Map Ordinance” authorizes the City Plan 
Commission of the City of Beloit to approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor 
subdivision of land within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City; and 
 

WHEREAS, the attached one-lot Certified Survey Map for 4611 E. Ryan Parkway in the 
Town of Turtle, containing 2.83 acres, more or less, is located within the extraterritorial 
jurisdiction of the City of Beloit; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission of the City of Beloit has reviewed the attached 
one-lot Certified Survey Map, which pertains to the following described land: 
 

LOTS 11 AND 12, TURTLEROCK ESTATES AND BEING LOCATED IN THE NW ¼ OF THE NW 
¼ OF SECTION 27. T. 1N., R. 13E. OF 4TH P.M., TOWN OF TURTLE, ROCK COUNTY, 
WISCONSIN.    

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Plan Commission of the City of Beloit 

does hereby conditionally approve the attached one-lot Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map 
for 4611 E. Ryan Parkway in the Town of Turtle, subject to the following condition: 
 

1. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds within one 
year of approval and a copy provided to the Planning and Building Services Division. 

 
Adopted this 7th day of June, 2023. 

 
       Plan Commission 
 
   

Mike Ramsden, Chairperson 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
Julie Christensen, 
Community Development Director 

19



REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 

Plan Commission Meeting Date:  June 7, 2023 

Agenda Items:  3.c. and 4.a. 

File Number:  RPB-2023-04 and ZMA-2023-05 

General Information 

Applicant:  Lori Rhead on behalf of the Board of Trustees of Beloit College 

Owner:  Beloit College Board of Trustees 

Address/Location:  1006 Park Avenue 

Applicant’s Request/Proposal: Lori Rhead on behalf of the Board of Trustees of Beloit College 
has submitted applications for a Comprehensive Plan Amendment from Office to Institutional 
and Community Services, and a Zoning Map Amendment from C-1, Office District to PLI, Public 
Lands and Institutions District for the property located at 1006 Park Avenue in the City of Beloit.  
This property is also located in the Wellhead Protection Overlay District. 

In February 2022, Governor Evers awarded Beloit College a Neighborhood Investment Fund 
grant for the development of a Community Outreach and Engagement Center at the Morse 
Library on campus located at 735 Church Street. Site plans have subsequently been received 
and are under review for the Morse Library Renovation project and related site improvements, 
including removal and potential relocation of an existing maintenance garage located at 732 
Church Street adjacent to the Morse Library.   

Beloit College would like to relocate the maintenance garage to their property located at 1006 
Park Avenue (formerly Geri’s Hamburgers) and continue to use it as a campus maintenance 
building. 

Staff Analysis 

Existing Site Conditions:  1006 Park Avenue (0.64 acres) is currently vacant, is zoned C-1, Office 
District, and is within the WPO, Wellhead Protection Overlay District.   The future land use 
designation for this parcel in the Comprehensive Plan is Office.  As such, if the proposed 
maintenance facility for Beloit College is to be allowed, a Comprehensive Plan Amendment and 
rezoning are both needed.  

Surrounding Land Use and Zoning:  To the east of the subject property is a mixture of a C-1, 
Office use, including a real estate office, and R-1B, Single family Residential uses.  To the south 
is property zoned R-3, Low Density Multifamily Residential District with single-family residential 

20



uses. To the west is vacant land owned by Beloit College zoned R-2, Two-Family Residential 
District and R-1B, Single-Family Residential uses.  To the north is R-1B, Single-Family Residential 
uses. 

City of Beloit Comprehensive and Strategic Plan:  Wisconsin’s Comprehensive Planning Law, 
§66.1001 of the Wisconsin Statutes, was signed into law in 1999. The Comprehensive Planning 
law requires all cities, towns, and villages that regulate land use through land use ordinances 
(e.g. zoning) to adopt a Comprehensive Plan. This plan is intended to guide development and 
redevelopment over a 20-year timeframe. The law also requires that land use decisions be 
consistent with the plan.  All land use decisions made by the City of Beloit, including any actions 
regarding official mapping, local subdivision regulation, and zoning regulations, must be 
consistent with the plan. 

Because the Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map recommends Office for this parcel, a 
Comprehensive Plan Amendment to Institutional and Community Services would be needed in 
order for this proposed rezoning to PLI, Public Lands and Institutions to be consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan. If rezoned, redeveloping a property that has been vacant since 2006 will 
help create and sustain safe and healthy neighborhoods through community revitalization in 
support of Strategic Goal #1 - Create and Sustain Safe and Healthy Neighborhoods.

Land Use Analysis:   
As noted, Beloit College would like to relocate the maintenance garage (900 square feet) 
currently located at 732 Church Street to their property located at 1006 Park Avenue (formerly 
Geri’s Hamburgers) and continue to use it as a campus maintenance building. A maintenance 
building for Beloit College is not permitted in the existing C-1, Office District, but is permitted in 
the PLI, Public Lands and Institutions District, which is the most appropriate zoning for college 
and related accessory buildings and uses.  The property has a future land use designation of 
Office and so in order to ensure consistency between the zoning amendment and the 
Comprehensive Plan, an amendment to the Comprehensive Plan would be needed to change 
the future land use to Institutional and Community Services, which is consistent with the PLI, 
Public Lands and Institutions zoning district. If both the Comprehensive Plan Amendment and 
Zoning Map Amendment are approved, redevelopment of the property will be subject to Site 
Plan Review requirements as well as the Architectural Review and Landscaping code, which 
require staff review and approval.   

Zoning Map Amendment Findings of Fact:  Based on Section 2-304 of the Zoning Ordinance, 
the Plan Commission shall make a recommendation based on the following considerations: 

1. The existing use of property within the general area of the subject property. 
The existing land use is vacant land (since 2006), but existing development surrounding 
the property is compatible with the Public Lands and Institutions District, which is most 
appropriate for college and related accessory buildings and uses.   

21



2. The zoning classification of property within the general area of the subject property.  
 Existing development surrounding 1006 Park Avenue includes compatible residential 

and office uses. Generally, the Public Lands and Institutions District is compatible with 
and integrated among other zoning districts to accommodate public and quasi-public 
land uses throughout the City, including the Beloit College campus.

3. The suitability of the subject property for the uses permitted under the existing zoning 
classification. 
The existing zoning classification is C-1, Office District. Uses permitted in C-1 may be 
compatible with this location, but the property has been vacant since 2006.  Prior to 
that it was a commercial use (Geri’s Hamburgers).  The proposed maintenance building 
for Beloit College is not permitted in the existing C-1, Office District, but is permitted in 
the PLI, Public Lands and Institutions District.  Staff believes PLI is also a compatible 
zoning district for this property.  

4. The trend of development and zoning map amendments in the general area of the 
subject property.  
There has not been much need for zoning map amendments in this area as it is a 
developed area of the City.  However, the development of a Community Outreach and 
Engagement Center at the Morse Library on campus involves significant investment, and 
necessitates relocation of the college maintenance facility.  Staff believes it is 
appropriate to rezone this parcel for Public Lands and Institutions uses provided a 
Comprehensive Plan amendment is approved to accommodate College and related 
accessory buildings and uses allowed under the Institutional and Community Services
future land use designation.   

STAFF RECOMMENDATION – COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT AND ZONING MAP 
AMENDMENT: 
The Planning and Building Services Division recommends approval of a Comprehensive Plan 
Amendment to change the future land use classification from Office to Institutional and 
Community Services for the property located at 1006 Park Avenue in the City of Beloit and also 
recommends approval of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning district classification 
from C-1, Office District, to PLI, Public Lands and Institutions District, for the property located at 
1006 Park Avenue in the City of Beloit. 

Resolutions for approval and denial of the Comprehensive Plan Amendment are included in this 
agenda packet.  The Plan Commission will need to make a motion to approve one of the 
resolutions, as the policy regarding amendments requires Plan Commission to make a 
recommendation by resolution. 

ATTACHMENTS:  Zoning Map, Location Map, Application, Zoning Public Notice, Zoning Mailing 
List, Ordinance, Existing Site, Proposed Site, Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map, 
Application and Resolutions. 

22



Zoning Map 

23



Location Map 

24



25



26



CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 
Office: 608/364-6700 • Fax: 608/364-6609 

www.beloitwi.gov 
Equal Opportunity Employer 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 

May 19, 2023 

To Whom It May Concern: 

Lori Rhead on behalf of the Beloit College Board of Trustees has submitted an application for 
review and consideration for a Zoning Map Amendment to rezone 1006 Park Avenue in the City 
of Beloit from C-1, Office District to PLI, Public Lands and Institutions District. 

The following public hearings will be held regarding these applications: 

City Plan Commission:  Wednesday, June 7, 2023 at 7:00 PM, or as soon thereafter as the 
matter can be heard in The Forum, Beloit City Hall, 100 State Street. 

City Council:  Monday, July 17, 2023 at 7:00 PM, or as soon thereafter as the matter can be 
heard in The Forum, Beloit City Hall, 100 State Street. 

We are interested in your opinion. * 

Anyone bringing handouts to the Plan Commission meeting must bring 10 copies and 
submit them to City staff before the meeting begins.  You may also mail your comments to 
the attention of TJ Nee at 100 State Street or via email to planning@beloitwi.gov. You may 
also call (608) 364-6711 to provide your comments over the phone. 

27



28



ORDINANCE NO. 3794 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE 
ZONING DISTRICT MAP OF THE CITY OF BELOIT 

The City Council of the City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin do ordain as follows: 

Section 1. The Zoning District Map of the City of Beloit, mentioned in the Zoning Code, Chapter 

19 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit, is amended as follows: 

The following described land is hereby changed from C-1, Office District to PLI, Public Lands and 
Institutions District: 

LOTS 1, 2 & 3 PEET & SALMONS ADDITION, CITY OF BELOIT, ROCK COUNTY, WISCONSIN. 

SAID PARCELS CONTAINING 0.64 ACRES MORE OR LESS. A/K/A 1006 PARK AVENUE.

Section 2.  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force upon its passage and publication. 

Adopted this ____ day of ___________, 2023. 

City Council of the City of Beloit 

________________________________________ 
Regina Dunkin, Council President 

Attest: 

______________________________________ 
Marcy J Granger, City Clerk-Treasurer 

Published this ____ day of _________, 2023 

Effective this ____ day of _________, 2023 

01-611100-5231- 

29



Existing Site 

30



Proposed Site 

31



Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map 

32



33



34



RESOLUTION 2023-025 
RECOMMENDING APPROVAL OF AN AMENDMENT TO THE 

CITY OF BELOIT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission of the City of Beloit recommended approval of the 
Comprehensive Plan of the City of Beloit (the Plan) on September 5, 2018, and the City Council 
of the City of Beloit approved an Ordinance adopting the Plan on November 5, 2018; and 

WHEREAS, the Plan may be amended and changed in the years following adoption, 
particularly in instances where the Plan is becoming irrelevant or contradictory to emerging 
policies or trends, or does not provide specific advice or guidance on an emerging issue; and 

WHEREAS, “Amendments” are generally defined as minor changes to the Plan’s maps or 
text; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Beloit approved a Resolution to Adopt a 
Process for Amending the City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan on February 1, 2010; and 

WHEREAS, the approved process directs the Plan Commission to hold a public meeting 
on the proposed amendment, and following said public meeting, make a recommendation by 
Resolution to the City Council by majority vote of the entire Commission. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Plan Commission of the City of Beloit, Rock 
County, Wisconsin, hereby recommends approval of the following amendment to the Future 
Land Use Map (Map 10) of the City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan: 

1006 Park Avenue - From Office to Institutional and Community Services.

Adopted this 7th day of June, 2023. 

Plan Commission 

Mike Ramsden, Chairperson 
ATTEST: 

Julie Christensen,  
Community Development Director 

35



RESOLUTION 2023-026 
RECOMMENDING DENIAL OF AN AMENDMENT TO THE 

CITY OF BELOIT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission of the City of Beloit recommended approval of the 
Comprehensive Plan of the City of Beloit (the Plan) on September 5, 2018, and the City Council 
of the City of Beloit approved an Ordinance adopting the Plan on November 5, 2018; and 

WHEREAS, the Plan may be amended and changed in the years following adoption, 
particularly in instances where the Plan is becoming irrelevant or contradictory to emerging 
policies or trends, or does not provide specific advice or guidance on an emerging issue; and 

WHEREAS, “Amendments” are generally defined as minor changes to the Plan’s maps or 
text; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Beloit approved a Resolution to Adopt a 
Process for Amending the City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan on February 1, 2010; and 

WHEREAS, the approved process directs the Plan Commission to hold a public meeting 
on the proposed amendment, and following said public meeting, make a recommendation by 
Resolution to the City Council by majority vote of the entire Commission. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Plan Commission of the City of Beloit, Rock 
County, Wisconsin, hereby recommends denial of the following amendment to the Future Land 
Use Map (Map 10) of the City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan: 

1006 Park Avenue - From Office to Institutional and Community Services.

Adopted this 7th day of June, 2023. 

Plan Commission 

Mike Ramsden, Chairperson 
ATTEST: 

Julie Christensen,  
Community Development Director

36



 
 

REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 
Plan Commission Meeting Date:  June 7, 2023 

Agenda Item:  4.b. 

File Number:  CU-2023-05 

General Information 

 
Applicant:  City of Beloit Water Resources Department  
Owner:  City of Beloit 
Address/Location:  555 Willowbrook Road (Water Pollution Control Facility (WPCF)) 
Applicant’s Request: Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for an 84-foot tall biosolids silo at 555 
Willowbrook Road  
 
Request Details  

On January 18, 2022, City Council approved the applicant’s Conditional Use Permit for an 84-
Foot Tall biosolids silo and an architectural design of a new building. (see attached City Council 
Resolution 2022-006). Since that approval, building, site, and architectural review plans have 
been approved. Building permits have been issued, and construction is underway. On the 
approved resolution, Ordinance Requirement number two requires that the applicant has 
“twelve (12) months from the date of CUP issuance to commence use of the property, or the 
CUP shall lapse and be of no further effect.” The purpose for requesting this new CUP is for the 
height of the biosolids silo to exceed 75 feet in M-2, because the silo has not yet been 
completed. Water Resources is hoping to start construction on the silo in the summer of 2023. 
The applicant did not establish or request an extension for the Conditional Use within 12 
months after the approval. The applicant is requesting a new CUP to allow them to finish 
construction of the silo and commence operations.  

 
Background 

A change in how the City of Beloit Water Resources Division handles biosolids requires new 
equipment and the construction of a new building to house the drying equipment and truck 
loading area. Regulation changes require an increase in sludge hauling., As a proactive measure, 
Water Resources will dry biosolids on site and store them in the biosolids silo. Sludge drying 
creates a Class A biosolid that can be used as fertilizer with fewer restrictions, and drying 
reduces the volume of disposal by about 80 percent. Section 7.3 of the Zoning Ordinance states 
that the maximum height restrictions in a zoning district (e.g., 75 feet in M-2) may be exceeded 
if reviewed and approved in accordance with the Conditional Use Permit review procedures.  
 

 

 

37



 Staff Analysis 

Existing Conditions:  The subject property is a 60-acre parcel home to the Water Pollution 
Control Facility on the southeast side of the City just west of I-90. It is zoned M-2, General 
Manufacturing District. 

 
Location and Architectural Design: The new building housing the biosolids dewatering system 
and dryer will be 10,891 square-feet, setback about 1,000 feet from Willowbrook Road. The 
project also includes a new access road, site drainage system, and the biosolids storage silo. The 
proposed storage silo will be 84-feet tall. The maximum height for a structure in the M-2 zoning 
district is 75 feet, requiring a conditional use permit for the silo portion of the project.  
 
The exterior of the building will be constructed using precast wall panels with a brick form liner 
finish, EPDM (rubber membrane) flat roofing, galvanized metal doors, and aluminum windows. 
Wall pack lights will be secured to the exterior walls and overhead lighting will be added to light 
the paved surfaces. On the attached site plan, the drying building is listed as number 90 and the 
silo is 91.  
  

City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan:  The City’s Comprehensive Plan recommends Institutional 
and Community Services for the subject property. This request and the underlying zoning 
classification are consistent with this recommendation. 
   
Review Agent Comments:  The proposed CUP application was sent to the City’s review agents.  
No comments have been submitted. 
 
Public Comments:  The attached notice was published on the City’s website, published in the 
local newspaper, and mailed to property owners within 150 feet of the site. No comments have 
been received.  
 
Findings of Fact: Based on Section 2-504 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan Commission shall 
make a recommendation based on the following considerations: 
a. Whether the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the conditional use will be 

detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare; 
 The proposed storage silo is not expected to generate significant noise, odor, or glare.  

b. Whether the conditional use will be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in 
the immediate or vicinity for purposes already permitted; 
 The proposed silo is compatible with the adjacent M-2 zoned properties and industrial 

uses. 
c. Whether the conditional use will substantially diminish or impair property values within the 

neighborhood of the subject property; 
 The applicant’s improvements will not impact the surrounding property values. The site 

has substantial screening with berms and evergreens on all four sides. The biosolids silo 
is 84 feet and as such cannot be fully screened, but will be painted and is compatible 
with the overall M-2 zoned site. 

38



d. Whether the establishment of the conditional use will impede the normal and orderly 
development and improvement of the surrounding property; 
 The proposed storage silo will not impede nearby development. 

e. Whether the exterior architectural design or site layout of the proposed conditional use is so 
dissimilar or otherwise incompatible with existing or proposed development in the 
immediate neighborhood that it will cause a depreciation in property values; 
 The proposed improvements are compatible with the site and will require site plan 

approval, architectural review, and building permits prior to starting construction.  
f. Whether adequate utilities, access roads, drainage or other necessary facilities will be 

available to serve the proposed use at the time of its occupancy or use; 
 Adequate facilities and infrastructure are available and currently serve the property. 

g. Whether adequate measures will be taken to minimize traffic congestion; and  
 The proposed additional silo will not cause an increase in traffic congestion. 

h. Whether the conditional use will comply with all applicable regulations of the Zoning 
Ordinance. 
 The proposed use will comply with all other applicable regulations. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
The Planning and Building Services Division recommends approval of a Conditional Use Permit 
to allow construction of an 84-foot tall biosolids silo in a M-2, General Manufacturing District at 
the Water Pollution Control Facility (WPCF) located at 555 Willowbrook Road, based on the 
above Findings of Fact and subject to the following: 
  
Ordinance Requirements: 
The following provisions of existing City Ordinances shall apply: 

1. In accordance with Section 2-511 of the Zoning Ordinance, the applicant shall have 
twelve (12) months from the date of CUP issuance to commence use of the property, or 
the CUP shall lapse and be of no further effect. 
 

Permit Conditions:  
1. This Conditional Use Permit authorizes the construction of an 84-foot tall biosolid 

storage silo. 
 

ATTACHMENTS:  Resolution 2023-24, CUP Decision Form, City Council Resolution 2022-006, 
Location Map, Site Plan, Renderings, Application, Public Notice and Mailing List. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

39



 
RESOLUTION 2023-24 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 
FOR AN 84-FOOT TALL BIOSOLIDS SILO AT 555 WILLOWBROOK ROAD  

 

WHEREAS, the application of the City of Beloit Water Resources Department for a Conditional 
Use Permit (CUP) to construct an 84-foot tall biosolids silo in a M-2, General Manufacturing District, for 
the property located at 555 Willowbrook Road have been considered by the Plan Commission of the City 
of Beloit, Wisconsin at a public hearing held for that purpose and due notice of said hearing having been 
given by publication as appears by the Proof of Publication in the City Clerk’s office; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Plan Commission of the City of Beloit, Rock County, 
WI does hereby approve a CUP to construct an 84-foot tall biosolids silo in a M-2, General 
Manufacturing District, and the location and architectural design of a new public building for the 
property located at 555 Willowbrook Road in the City of Beloit, based upon the substantial evidence 
described in the Findings of Fact and Conditional Use Decision Form for City Council which is attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by reference, for the following described premises: 
 

LOT 2 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP AS RECORDED IN VOLUME 13 ON PAGES 268-270 OF 
THE CERTIFIED SURVEY MAPS OF ROCK COUNTY, LOCATED IN THE CITY OF BELOIT, 
ROCK COUNTY, WISCONSIN (A/K/A 555 WILLOWBROOK ROAD).  SAID PARCEL 
CONTAINS 60.00 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

  

 As a condition of granting the Conditional Use Permit, the Plan Commission does hereby 
stipulate the following condition and restriction upon the Conditional Use, which is hereby deemed 
necessary for the public interest: 
 

1. This Conditional Use Permit authorizes the construction of an 84-foot tall biosolid storage silo. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the applicant is formally advised of the following additional 
ordinance requirements and conditions: 
 
1. In accordance with Section 2-511 of the Zoning Ordinance, the applicant shall have twelve (12) 

months from the date of CUP issuance to commence use of the property, or the CUP shall lapse 
and be of no further effect. 

 
Adopted this 7th day of June, 2023. 

PLAN COMMISSION 
 
  _ 
 Mike Ramsden, Chairperson 
ATTEST: 
 
  
Julie Christensen, 
Community Development Director 

40



Beloit Plan Commission CUP Decision Form 
 
When reviewing an application for a conditional use, the local government must look to the 
requirements and conditions found in the local zoning ordinance and determine if the applicant 
meets those requirements and conditions.  The local government must provide substantial 
evidence supporting their decision to grant or deny the permit, and to impose additional 
conditions on the permit.  Substantial evidence means facts and information, directly relating to 
the requirements and conditions, that a reasonable person would accept in support of a 
conclusion.  Personal preferences and speculation are not sufficient forms of evidence.  All 
requirements and conditions imposed by the local government must be reasonable, and to the 
extent practicable, measurable. 
 

Ordinance Requirements 
List ordinance requirements related to the conditional use permit: 
 

1. In accordance with Section 2-511 of the Zoning Ordinance, the applicant shall have twelve 
(12) months from the date of CUP issuance to commence use of the property, or the CUP 
shall lapse and be of no further effect. 
Substantial Evidence: Standardized condition that reiterates the expiration date for unused 
CUP’s in the Zoning Ordinance. 

 

Permit Conditions 
A local government is authorized to impose conditions on the permit that relate to the purpose of 
the ordinance.  Conditions must be reasonable, and to the extent practicable, measurable.  
Conditions may limit the permit’s duration, transfer, or renewal. List conditions imposed on the 
permit:  
 

1. This Conditional Use Permit allows the construction of an 84-foot tall biosolids silo in an M-2, 
General Manufacturing zoning district located 555 Willowbrook Road. 

 Substantial Evidence:  Section 7.3 of the Zoning Ordinance states that the maximum 
height restrictions in a zoning district may be exceeded if reviewed and approved in 
accordance with the Conditional Use Permit review procedures, and this condition 
articulates that the proposed development standard is deemed appropriate at this 
location based on the Findings of Fact and ordinance requirements. 

 
 

Does the applicant meet all of the ordinance requirements?  No   Yes, after the steps 
above. 

41



42



43



Location Map – 555 Willowbrook Road 
 

44



45



Staff Report  CU-2023-06, 555 Willowbrook Rd, Silo height M-2 
46



Staff Report  CU-2023-06, 555 Willowbrook Rd, Silo height M-2 
47



Staff Report  CU-2023-06, 555 Willowbrook Rd, Silo height M-2 
48



Staff Report  CU-2023-06, 555 Willowbrook Rd, Silo height M-2 
49



Staff Report  CU-2023-06, 555 Willowbrook Rd, Silo height M-2 
50



Staff Report  CU-2023-06, 555 Willowbrook Rd, Silo height M-2 

 

 

                  CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 
 Office: 608/364-6700 • Fax: 608/364-6609 
 www.beloitwi.gov 
 Equal Opportunity Employer 

 
NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 

 
May 22, 2023 

 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
The City of Beloit Water Resources Department has applied for a Conditional Use Permit to allow construct an 
84-foot tall biosolids storage silo in a M-2, General Manufacturing District for the property located at: 

 
555 Willowbrook Road   

 
The following public hearings will be held regarding this proposed Conditional Use Permit: 
 
City Plan Commission:  Wednesday June 7, 2023, at 7:00 PM, or as soon thereafter as the matter can be heard 
in The Forum, Beloit City Hall, 100 State Street. 
 
 

THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND THESE HEARINGS. 
 

We are interested in your opinion. 
  
Anyone bringing handouts to the Plan Commission meeting must bring 10 copies and submit them to City 
staff before the meeting begins.   
 
You may also mail your comments to the attention of Hilary Rottmann at 100 State Street or via email to 
planning@beloitwi.gov. You may also call (608) 364-6708 to provide your comments over the phone.   
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

51

mailto:planning@beloitwi.gov


 

 

 
WILLOWBROOK STATELINE LLC 

525 THIRD ST SUITE 300 
BELOIT WI 53511 

 

    

 
HO-CHUNK NATION 

P O BOX 310 
BLACK RIVER FALLS WI 54615 

 
 

    

     

     

     

     

     

     

52



REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 

Plan Commission Meeting Date:  June 7, 2023 

Agenda Item:  4.c.  

File Number:  ZMA-2023-04 

General Information 

Applicant:  Julie Christensen on behalf of the City of Beloit Plan Commission  

Owner:  City of Beloit 

Address/Location:  2000 Gateway Boulevard 

Applicant’s Request/Proposal: City staff has submitted an application for a Zoning Map 
Amendment from M-1, Limited Manufacturing District to C-3, Community Commercial District 
for the property located at 2000 Gateway Boulevard in the City of Beloit.  This Zoning Map 
Amendment was previously referred by City Council to the Plan Commission on May 1, 2023 for 
the May 3, 2023 Plan Commission meeting.  However, because of a clerical issue, the property 
owner was not individually notified prior to Plan Commission review.  As such, the item was not 
reviewed by Plan Commission. The owner has since been individually notified.

Staff Analysis 

Existing Site Conditions:  2000 Gateway Boulevard (28.8 acres) is currently zoned M-1 – Limited 
Manufacturing District.   The future land use designation for this parcel in the Comprehensive 
Plan is Community Commercial, which is most compatible with the C-3, Community Commercial 
Zoning District.  

2000 Gateway Boulevard is along the extension of Milwaukee Road east of the new I-39/90 and 
I-43 interchange, and is ideal for community commercial uses as an extension of the Milwaukee 
Road commercial corridor. On June 5, 2023, the City Council held a public hearing on a Zoning 
Map Amendment from M-1, Limited Manufacturing District, to C-3, Community Commercial 
District, for the property located at 2001 Gateway Boulevard just across Gateway Boulevard 
from the subject property.  The intent is to also rezone the property at 2000 Gateway 
Boulevard to create a larger commercial district along this portion of Milwaukee Road. 

Surrounding Land Use and Zoning:  To the east of the subject property is vacant land (2001 
Gateway Boulevard) which is also proposed to be rezoned to C-3. To the north is Interstate 43 
with C-1, Office District and R-1A, Single Family Residential District in the Lathers Woods area.  
To the south is Wisconsin Power and Light (WP&L) property zoned M-1, Limited Manufacturing 
District.  To the west is Kerry Ingredients zoned M-1, Limited Manufacturing District and a 

53



WisDOT parcel zoned DH, Development Holding District.   

City of Beloit Comprehensive and Strategic Plan:  The Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use 
Map recommends Community Commercial for this parcel. The rezoning is consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan’s recommendation and supports Strategic Goal #3 - Create and Sustain 
Economic and Residential Growth and Strategic Goal #4 - Create and Sustain a High Quality of 
Life.

Zoning Map Amendment Findings of Fact:  Based on Section 2-304 of the Zoning Ordinance, 
the Plan Commission shall make a recommendation based on the following considerations: 

1. The existing use of property within the general area of the subject property. 
The existing land use is vacant land, but existing and planned developments surrounding 
the property are compatible with Community Commercial uses.  The location along 
Gateway Boulevard, a highly visible minor arterial, is ideal for commercial development. 
Nearby connections to the existing Milwaukee Road commercial corridor, the I-
39/90/WI-81 interchange and the I-43/Hart Road interchange further lend this property 
to commercial development along this highly visible traffic corridor. 

2. The zoning classification of property within the general area of the subject property.  
 Existing and planned developments surrounding the property along 2000 Gateway 

Boulevard and the adjacent Milwaukee Road include compatible industrial and office 
uses, and an opportunity to extend the Milwaukee Road commercial corridor further 
east. 

3. The suitability of the subject property for the uses permitted under the existing zoning 
classification. 
The existing zoning classification is M-1, Limited Manufacturing District along Gateway 
Boulevard and Milwaukee Road east of I-39/90.  While some commercial uses are 
permitted or conditional in the M-1 and M-2 manufacturing districts, some are less 
compatible with C-3, Community Commercial districts and highly travelled and visible 
locations such as this.  Likewise, some uses only permitted in M-1 and M-2 make this 
parcel less suitable for a manufacturing zoning classification given that same high 
visibility and compatibility with the adjacent land uses.  

4. The trend of development and zoning map amendments in the general area of the 
subject property.  
There has not been much if any need for zoning map amendments in these areas until 
now.  Gateway Boulevard/Milwaukee Road have been partially developed with high 
quality manufacturing and office uses.  However, with the extension of Milwaukee Road 
east of I-39/90, which allows the extension of commercial uses along the interstates, 
staff believes the timing is appropriate to rezone this parcel for commercial uses 
consistent with Comprehensive Plan. 

54



STAFF RECOMMENDATION – ZONING MAP AMENDMENT: 
The Planning and Building Services Division recommends approval of a Zoning Map 
Amendment to change the zoning district classification from M-1, Limited Manufacturing 
District, to C-3, Community Commercial District, for the property located at 2000 Gateway 
Boulevard in the City of Beloit. 

ATTACHMENTS:  Zoning Map, Location Map, Application, Public Notice, Mailing List, and 
Ordinance. 

55



Zoning Map 

56



Location Map 

57



58



59



CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 
Office: 608/364-6700 • Fax: 608/364-6609 

www.beloitwi.gov 
Equal Opportunity Employer 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 

May 19, 2023 

To Whom It May Concern: 

The City of Beloit has submitted an application for review and consideration for a Zoning Map 
Amendment to rezone 2000 Gateway Boulevard from M-1, Limited Manufacturing to C-3, 
Community Commercial District. 

The following public hearings will be held regarding these applications: 

City Plan Commission:  Wednesday, June 7, 2023 at 7:00 PM, or as soon thereafter as the 
matter can be heard in The Forum, Beloit City Hall, 100 State Street. 

City Council:  Monday, July 17, 2023 at 7:00 PM, or as soon thereafter as the matter can be 
heard in The Forum, Beloit City Hall, 100 State Street. 

We are interested in your opinion. * 

Anyone bringing handouts to the Plan Commission meeting must bring 10 copies and 
submit them to City staff before the meeting begins.  You may also mail your comments to 
the attention of TJ Nee at 100 State Street or via email to planning@beloitwi.gov. You may 
also call (608) 364-6711 to provide your comments over the phone. 

60



61



ORDINANCE NO. 3793 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE 
ZONING DISTRICT MAP OF THE CITY OF BELOIT 

The City Council of the City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin do ordain as follows: 

Section 1. The Zoning District Map of the City of Beloit, mentioned in the Zoning Code, Chapter 

19 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit, is amended as follows: 

The following described land is hereby changed from M-1, Limited Manufacturing District to C-3, 
Community Commercial District: 

PT E 1/2 SEC S OF MILW RD COM AT INTERSEC C/L SEC 21 & NWLY LE CM ST P RY TH N 54 

DEG 46 MIN E 1229.12 FT, NW 1856.7 FT TO C/L MILW RD, SW 1115.73 FT O C/L SEC, S 

2083.43 FT TO POB EXC V 523 P 262 & V 378 P 516, 42 A & EXC 6.21 AC M/L FOR HWY EXC 

THAT PART DEEDED TO CITY OF BELOIT IN DOC 1866270 1.5 AC ALSO EXCEPTING THAT PART 

DEEDED TO WISCONSIN DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION PROJECT PLAT DOC 2070509 

5.837 AC M/L, CITY OF BELOIT, ROCK COUNTY, WISCONSIN. SAID PARCEL CONTAINING 

28.794 ACRES MORE OR LESS. A/K/A 2000 GATEWAY BOULEVARD.

Section 2.  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force upon its passage and publication. 

Adopted this ____ day of ___________, 2023. 

City Council of the City of Beloit 

________________________________________ 
Regina Dunkin, Council President 

Attest: 

______________________________________ 
Marcy J Granger, City Clerk-Treasurer 

Published this ____ day of _________, 2023 

Effective this ____ day of _________, 2023 

01-611100-5231- 

62


	Plan Commission Agenda
	2023-1650 - Attachment
	2023-1653 - Attachment
	2023-1656 - Attachment
	2023-1654 - Attachment
	2023-1651 - Attachment
	2023-1652 - Attachment

